
 
 January 14, 2020 Trustee Regular Meeting Agenda 1 

 

 
9546 Brandywine Road, Northfield Center, OH  44067 

Phone:  (330) 467-7646 Fax:  (330) 650-0815 www.northfieldcenter.com 
   

FISCAL OFFICER TRUSTEES ADMINISTRATOR 
Andy LaGuardia Paul G. Buescher, Chair Steve Wright 

 Richard H. Reville, Vice-Chair  
 Russell F. Mazzola, Trustee  

 

NOTICE & AGENDA 
NORTHFIELD CENTER TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
January 14, 2020 

Beginning immediately upon conclusion of the Work Session or at 7 PM, whichever 
occurs first 

(Draft as of January 10, 2019-Subject to change) 

Please silence all electronic devices. 

A Sign-in Sheet is available at the beginning of the meeting and will be attached to the official 
Meeting Minutes.   

The public was notified of this meeting by Facebook, Twitter, Community Focus, an e-mail Sunshine 
Law notice to the Meeting Notification List, information placed on the Township’s website, and the 

electronic sign. 

A. THE CHAIR CALLS THE MEETING TO ORDER AT __________ P.M. 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______.  
 

B. THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Completed during Work Session 
 

C. GUEST SPEAKER: None  
 

D. DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
1. Sheriff 
2. Fire 
3. Service 
4. County 
5. Administrator  

 



 
 January 14, 2020 Trustee Regular Meeting Agenda 2 

 

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
1. Communications 
2. Parks and Recreation 
3. Safety Services 
4. Stormwater Management 

 
F. PUBLIC COMMENTS-LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES PER PERSON 

 
G. MOTIONS/RESOLUTIONS 

 
1) Consent Agenda 

All matters under the Consent Agenda are considered by the Board of Trustees to be routine 
and will be enacted by one motion. Any Trustee may remove an item from the Consent 
Agenda by request. No second is required for removal of an item.  Items removed for 
separate discussion will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Organizational Items: 

a) The Chair requests a Motion to approve and/or dispense with the reading of the 
minutes of the Trustee Public Hearing of December 2, 2019. 

b) The Chair requests a Motion to approve and/or dispense with the reading of the 
minutes of the Trustee Work Session of December 2, 2019. 

c) The Chair requests a Motion to approve and/or dispense with the reading of the 
minutes of the Trustee Regular Meeting of December 2, 2019. 

d) The Chair requests a Motion to approve and/or dispense with the reading of the 
minutes of the Trustee Special Meeting of December 19, 2019. 

e) The Chair requests a Motion to approve and/or dispense with the reading of the 
minutes of the Trustee Special Meeting of December 31, 2019. 

f) The Chair requests a Motion to authorize the Fiscal Officer to draw December 2019 
vouchers, in the amount of $215,272.09, to meet current expenditures. 

g) The Chair requests a Motion to acknowledge receipt of the Bank Reconciliations for 
the month of December 2019, received January 2, 2019, as presented by the Fiscal 
Officer. 

The Chair requests a Motion to approve all items on the consent agenda. 

____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______.  
 

2) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Accept the NatureWorks Local 
Grant Program State/Local Project Agreement (“Agreement”), for the Beacon Hills Park 
Enhancement Project (“Project”), with certification of said Agreement to be provided by 
the Township’s counsel immediately subsequent to approval.  All work on the Project 
shall be completed by no later than 12/31/2021.  The full text of the agreement is 
attached to this agenda. 



 
 January 14, 2020 Trustee Regular Meeting Agenda 3 

 

 
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______.  
 

3) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Approve the request of Kimble 
Recycling & Disposal, Inc. that the household rate for refuse collection services be 
increased by $.60 per household per year, during the current contract period, to entirely 
defray additional operating costs introduced by the increase in Ohio’s motor vehicle fuel 
tax rates and Twinsburg Township’s disposal fees.  The total impact on Northfield 
Center Township’s households (for the year) would be $1,029.00.  The fee request 
letter has been attached to this agenda. 

                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______.  
 

4) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Approve the request of Kimble 
Recycling & Disposal, Inc. that the household rate for recycling collection services be 
increased by $.60 per household per month, during the current contract period, to 
“cover the growing cost of an ongoing program”.  The total impact on Northfield Center 
Township’s households (for the year) would be $12,348.00.  The fee request letter has 
been attached to this agenda.   

                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______.  
 

5) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Approve the Northfield Center 
Township Social Media Policy.  The full text of the draft Policy has been attached to 
this agenda. 
                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______. 
 



 
 January 14, 2020 Trustee Regular Meeting Agenda 4 

 

6) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Authorize Service Director Youel 
to utilize the 2020 $500 OTARMA MORE Grant funds for the purpose of purchasing 
lifting chains and straps for the Service Building.   
                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______. 
 

7) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Authorize Township Administrator 
Steve Wright to request engineering assistance from the Summit County Engineer’s 
Office, to commence design and installation of stormwater ponds at Crestwood Park, 
per the Summit County Engineer’s recommendations contained in the January 11, 2019 
“Crestwood Park Preliminary Drainage Report”.  Said report is attached to this 
agenda.     
                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______. 
 

8) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Approve a BC, in the amount of 
$12,000, to be drawn from the 10-A-15F (Fire Other) Fund, for various, anticipated 
2020 Fire expenditures.   
                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______. 
 
 

9) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Approve the encashment of 68.23 
unused vacation hours for John Horn. 
                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______. 
 

10) The Chair requests Resolution No. 20/01-14____ to:  Approve a Purchase Order, in the 
amount of $750, payable to Apex Land Surveying, to complete a survey of the Beacon 



 
 January 14, 2020 Trustee Regular Meeting Agenda 5 

 

Hills Park property (inclusive of three parcels).  The three quotes received have been 
attached to this agenda.     
                                   
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______. 
 

11) The Chair requests a Motion to schedule two hearings, for Monday, March 2nd, 
immediately preceding the Trustee Work Session and Regular Meeting, and Monday, 
March 9th, at 6 pm, to discuss implementing the new, additional $5 Permissive Motor 
Vehicle License Fee in the Township.   
 
Per ORC 4504.181(B), “Prior to the adoption of any resolution under this section, the 
board of township trustees shall conduct two public hearings on the resolution, the 
second hearing to be not less than three but not more than ten days after the first 
hearing. The board shall provide notice of the date, time, and place of both hearings by 
publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the township…once a week on the 
same day of the week for two consecutive weeks. The second publication shall be not 
less than ten but not more than thirty days prior to the first hearing.” 
 
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______. 
 

H. FISCAL OFFICER’S REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

I. TRUSTEES’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 

J. TRUSTEE  __________________ REQUESTS A MOTION FOR ADJOURMENT. 
 
____________________ moves;   ______________________ seconds. 
 
Discussion:  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Roll Call:  Russell F. Mazzola ______; Richard H. Reville _______; Paul G. Buescher  _______.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at ____________ p.m. 





















  Kimble Recycling & Disposal, Inc. 
  P.O. Box 448 
  Dover, OH  44622 
  Phone:  (800) 201-0005 
  Fax: (330) 343-7560 
  www.kimblecompanies.com 
 
October 1, 2019 
 
Northfield Center Township 
Attn: Steve Wright  
Township Administrator 
9546 Brandywine Road 
Northfield Center, OH 44067 
 
Re: Curbside Recycling Collection 
 
Dear Mr. Wright, 
 
Since 1993, when the Kimble family opened their first post-consumer recycling facility here in Northeast 
Ohio, they have prided themselves with continuous recycling operations, processing  many millions of 
pounds of paper, cardboard, plastic, glass and metal products for resale to industry. This uninterrupted 
collection and recycling effort has helped greatly to extend landfill space for the future needs of our 
area.   
 
In the past, we have seen monthly market price fluctuations, while difficult to manage, generally tended 
to average out at acceptable revenue levels, quarter to quarter.  Unfortunately and unpredictably, over 
two years ago, due mainly to the Chinese government’s ban on the importation of all but the highest 
quality recycled product, revenues have plummeted.  Paper, as an example, previously sold for $70 to 
$100 per ton.  Most of the last year the price has been at $15 per ton.  
 
Other factors, including raw material contamination, have increased processing costs to a range of $70 
to $90 per ton.  Items like clothing, hoses, wires and plastic bags wrap around our sorting equipment, 
cause plant downtime and hours of labor to free the screening mechanisms, and expose our employees 
to potential injury to remove these contaminated items from the equipment.  This non-recyclable 
contamination must be removed manually, and hauled to the landfill.  This all adds significant cost to 
processing.  Paper and other recyclable products become less valuable as a result of contamination. 
 
Consequently, we request your consideration.  Since we have experienced significant and unpredictable 
increases in the cost of processing and reductions in the value of recyclable material, we are losing 
money with the recycling program.  We ask that you consider a $.60 increase in the price per unit per 
month to cover the growing cost of maintaining an ongoing program.  We estimate the total change in 
monthly cost to be $1,029.00.  We want to continue our strong relationship with your community and 
recognize recent bid results for similar services in nearby communities have steadily increased per unit.  
We believe this is a fair compromise to address what we face in the industry. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
Don Johnson 

http://www.kimblecompanies.com/


NORTHFIELD CENTER TOWNSHIP SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 
 
The purpose of this Social Media Policy (“Policy”) is to establish guidelines and practices for the use 
and management of Northfield Center Township’s (“Township’s”) Social Media outlets.  The 
Township’s use of Social Media is to augment and enhance our established print, cable TV, signage, 
and web communications with the public.   
 
Scope of this Policy 
Elected officials for the Township, Township staff, and outside individuals or entities posting on 
Township-administered Social Media platforms are governed by this policy.  For the purposes of 
this Policy, Social Media is defined as any communication that is achieved via email, blogging 
website, social media website, official website, text, electronic newsletter, or other similar 
communication channels/platforms. 
 
This Policy have been created in order to protect the Board’s reputation, facilitate compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations, clarify roles and permissions of Social Media outreach within the 
Northfield Center Township organization, and empower members of the Board and Township staff 
to be effective advocates of Northfield Center Township by putting forth singular messages and 
unified, shared narrative.   
 
Social Media Authority and Administration  
The Township’s elected officials, as well as the Township Administrator, have the authority to 
enforce this policy.  Unless otherwise designated, the Township Administrator and/or his designee 
shall administer and update the Social Media accounts.   
 
The only social media channels/platforms permitted for Board or Township-related events are 
those specifically developed by, or authorized to be developed by or used on behalf of, the Board or 
its designee. 
 
Any person who is not an elected official or member of the Township staff who chooses to 
contribute to any Social Media channel/platform is personally responsible for their contribution.  
The Township is specifically NOT responsible for said contribution.  
 
Any and all statements that are to be made by Northfield Center Township via Social Media 
regarding any ongoing matters of legal or social importance outside of the normal scope of 
Northfield Center Township business are to be made by the Elected Officials of the Township after 
discussion and agreement amongst the same.  
 
Any statements made by anyone other than the Elected Officers, or an authorized representative 
thereof, via Social Media, are deemed to not be from Northfield Center Township and should be 
disregarded for all purposes. 
 
Elected officials and designated staff are official spokespersons of Northfield Center Township. 
 
Use of Personal Social Media by Elected Officials to Post Township-Related Business 
Township Social Media sites are subject to Ohio’s Sunshine Laws.  Any content maintained in a 
Social Media format that is related to Township business, including lists of subscribers and posted 
communication, is a public record, except to the extent that such content includes information that 
is exempt from disclosure.  Users have no expectation of privacy or confidentiality with respect to 



any content they post to Township social media sites.  The Township shall have full rights and 
permission to all posted content, including digital photographs and videos.   
 
Elected officials or Township staff who utilize their personal Social Media accounts to post 
organization-related business are, likewise, creating a public record.  In addition, any attempt to 
block social media users, from personal Social Media accounts that incorporate Township business, 
based on their views, may create First Amendment issues.   See, for instance, Davison v Loudon 
County Board of Supervisors, 227 F.Supp.3d 605 (2017)**.    
 
**Davison v. Loudoun County Board of Supervisors involved the chair of the Loudoun County Board 
of Supervisors, Phyllis J. Randall. In her capacity as a government official, Randall runs a Facebook 
page to keep in touch with her constituents. In one post to the page, Randall wrote, “I really want to 
hear from ANY Loudoun citizen on ANY issues, request, criticism, compliment, or just your 
thoughts.” She explicitly encouraged Loudoun residents to reach out to her through her “county 
Facebook page.” 
 
Regardless of the manner in which Elected Officials or staff utilize their personal accounts, neither 
those accounts nor any account established for a singular department, program, or agency should 
be construed as speaking for the entire Township.   
 
Social Media Identification/Branding 
Social media accounts are an extension of the Township brand in the digital space, and the public 
needs to be able to quickly and accurately identify official accounts. It also needs to be clear that 
employees don’t speak on behalf of the Township and that their personal views are their own.  
Social Media accounts administered by the Township should be designated as such via the following 
included language:  “This site is administered by Northfield Center Township to enhance 
communication with our residents.” 

Retention Process 
Social Media accounts utilized for Township business are subject to public records requests via 
Ohio’s Sunshine Laws.  As such, posts shall be retained, separate from the Social Media site itself, 
based on the timelines established in the current Northfield Center Township Records Retention 
Schedule.     

Communication Monitoring and Removal Protocol 
Posts to Township social media sites will be monitored and reviewed.  The Township Social Media 
sites are not meant for comments that do not relate to the purpose or topic posted.  User comments 
should directly relate to the information posted or displayed by the Township on the site.  
Comments which are found to be inflammatory, offensive, derogatory, threatening, intimidating, 
intending harm to any individual or organization, or posted to advertise a business are prohibited.  
Similarly, confidential, copyrighted, personal (PPI), HIPPA and other sensitive information must 
always be protected, and should not be allowed on public Social Media.   
All Social Media posts that violate the terms of this policy may be subject to removal.  Removed 
content shall be retained off-line and stored by the Township for a year.  The Township may 
preclude access to social media to any individual who violates the terms of this policy, without 
notice to such individual.  The Township is not liable for inappropriate or offensive comments, any 

https://cases.justia.com/federal/district-courts/virginia/vaedce/1:2016cv00932/348006/132/0.pdf?ts=1501081939


comments that are prohibited as noted above, and/or the improper publication of confidential 
information that may be posted on Social Media. 
 
Violation Consequences 
As indicated in the Communication Monitoring and Removal Protocol section above, the Board 
reserves the rights to remove any post and/or individual from any Social Media channel/platform if 
they do not comply with the guidelines outlined in this policy, in its entirety.  In addition, Township 
staff who violate this policy, by posting prohibited content, will be subject to disciplinary action, up 
to and including termination.  

Amendments to these Guidelines 
These Guidelines shall be reviewed and updated every two years (or as needed) by the Board of 
Trustees, beginning in January 2020, with the next review scheduled for not later than January 
2022 and continuing thereafter. 
 
Approved and Adopted by: 
 
 

















1

Steve Wright

From: Steve Wright
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2020 3:04 PM
To: Paul B.; Richard Reville; Russell Mazzola
Cc: 'Rick & Donna Patz'
Subject: FW: Quote Request - Beacon Hill Blvd

TrackingTracking: Recipient Delivery

'Rick & Donna Patz'

Paul B.

Richard Reville Delivered: 1/10/2020 3:05 PM

Russell Mazzola Delivered: 1/10/2020 3:05 PM

Quote #3 for the Beacon Hills Park survey is below.  This is the lowest quote. 
 

From: Kelly Dunford, P.S. <ps8182@sbcglobal.net>  
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2020 2:11 PM 
To: Steve Wright <townadministrator@northfieldcenter.com> 
Subject: RE: Quote Request - Beacon Hill Blvd 
 
Hi Steve, 
 
Thanks for the inquiry and sorry for the delay in my response, as I’ve been in the field most of this week. My fee to 
provide a boundary survey for the perimeter of these 3 parcels would be $750. This service would include: The 
establishment of the perimeter/property lines formed by the 3 parcels, the pinning of the perimeter lot corners, stakes 
set intermediately along the perimeter of the property (to aid in determining the exist. swale location) along with a map 
of survey for your records. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions or if you would like to proceed.  
 
I can typically start new work within a week of authorization and estimate about a week to turn this around. 
 
Thanks! 
 
Kelly Dunford, P.S. 
Apex Land Surveying 
2858 Fulmer Dr., Silver Lake, OH 44224 
Office: (330) 928-7750 
Email: ps8182@sbcglobal.net 
Website: www.apexlandsurveying.com 
 

From: noreply=apexlandsurveying.com@wpdatacenter.com <noreply=apexlandsurveying.com@wpdatacenter.com> On 
Behalf Of Steve Wright 
Sent: Monday, January 6, 2020 4:09 PM 
To: ps8182@sbcglobal.net 
Subject: Quote Request - Beacon Hill Blvd 
 



2

Your Name  

  Steve Wright  

Company Name  

  Northfield Center Township  

Email Address  

  townadministrator@northfieldcenter.com  

Phone Number  

  (330) 467-7646  

Site Address  

  
Beacon Hill Blvd 
Northfield Center, Ohio 44067 
United States 
Map It  

Parcel Number  

  4001496, 4001497, 4001498 (Beacon Hills Park, inclusive of all 3 parcels))  

County  

  Summit  

What type of survey do you need?  

  Determination of existing swale placement  

Brief Description of Services Requested  

  1) The true property lines for the park (inclusive of all three parcels) 
2) Whether or not the existing swale is in the park property  

Where did you hear about us?  

  Google  

IP Address  

  108.162.216.170  
 

 



Proposal
DATE

1/8/2019

ESTIMATE #

CLIENT

Northfield Center Township
9546 Brandywine Road
Northfield Center, OH  44067

Kalstrom Surveying & Mapping, LLC

PO Box 13858
Fairlawn, Ohio 44334

PROJECT

Lot Survey

SIGNATURE

Phone #

330-865-8459

Fax #

866-529-4036

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION QTY COST TOTAL

Beacon Hill Park, Northfield Center, Ohio - Boundary survey.

Boundary Survey of three lots within an allotment. Includes legal research, horizontal control,
boundary analysis, pins set at corners where needed and survey drawing. Location of encroachments
and drainage swale along boundary lines.

850.00 850.00

_____________________________________

$850.00








	NCT Social Media Policy 2019.pdf
	Retention Process
	Communication Monitoring and Removal Protocol
	Posts to Township social media sites will be monitored and reviewed.  The Township Social Media sites are not meant for comments that do not relate to the purpose or topic posted.  User comments should directly relate to the information posted or disp...
	All Social Media posts that violate the terms of this policy may be subject to removal.  Removed content shall be retained off-line and stored by the Township for a year.  The Township may preclude access to social media to any individual who violates...




